I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR AND ISSUES- PRESENTED ........--"--- ""--,.,-- --- _." ~-

A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The prosecutor violated the terms of the plea 

agreement. 

2. The sentencing court erred by classifying a 

conviction for vehicular assault as a serious violent felony. 

3. The sentencing court erred by imposing 36 

months of community custody. 

B. ISSUES PRESENTED 

1. Did the prosecuting attorney violate the terms 

of the plea agreement when the prosecutor agreed not to make a 

sentencing recommendation and, ultimately, argued that the 

injuries sustained by the victim amounted to a fate worse than 

death? 

2. Did the sentencing court err by classifying 

Vehicular Assault as a serious violent felony? 

3. Did the sentencing court err by imposing 36 

months community custody? 



II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE......._-_. .

Pursuant to an Information filed on December 9th, 2013, 

Michael Dee Neisler (hereinafter "Mr. Neisler") was charged 

with one count of Vehicular Assault l and one count of Vehicular 

Assault with Aggravating Circumstances 2
• CP at 1-3. 

Negotiations were pursued between the State and Mr. Neisler, 

where a resolution was met and a Defendant's Statement of Plea 

of Guilty was filed and presented to the court on October 21, 

2014. RP at 2; CP at 16-26. 

As such, a sentencing hearing was conducted on October 

21 st, 2014 in Stevens County Superior Court with the Honorable 

Judge Allen C. Nielson presiding. RP at 1. Per the resolution, 

it was agreed that Mr. Neisler would be pleading guilty to count 

one and two of the Information. RP at 2. Additionally, it was 

agreed that during the sentencing hearing the State would not be 

making a recommendation as to a term of imprisonment. CP at 

43; RP at 2. Consequently, Mr. Neisler plead guilty to counts 

1 RCW 46.6] .522 

2 Id.; RCW 9.94A.535 
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one and two of the Information3 on October 21 st, 2014. RP at 7

8. 

Subsequently, at sentencing, the Court then addressed, 

among other issues, the classification of Vehicular Assault, for 

purposes of community custody. RP at 18. Ultimately, the 

court found that Vehicular Assault was a serious violent felony 

and imposed 36 months of community custody. Id.; CP at 32. 

However, the Court did acknowledge that this determination was 

in disagreement. RP at 18. 

The Felony Judgment and Sentencing was completed and 

filed by the Court on October 21, 2014 and Mr. Neisler was 

taken into custody. CP at 27-39; RP at 19. Finally, Notice of 

Appeal was filed on November 13th, 2014 addressing five issues 

that pertained to sentencing. CP at 40. 

B. rK9cedur~lJUstory. 

An Information was filed on December 9th, 2013 in the Stevens 

County Superior Court, where Mr. Neisler was charged with one count of 

Vehicular Assault4 and one count of Vehicular Assault with Aggravating 

3 CP at 1-3. 

4 RCW 46.61.522 

3 




-----

Circumstances5
• CP at 1-3. Pursuant to a negotiated resolution, a Notice of 

Settlement was filed on September 16,2014. CP at 42-43. Additionally, 

Defendant's Statement on Plea of Guilty was filed on October 21 st, 2014. CP 

at 16-26. Subsequently, a sentencing hearing was conducted on October 21, 

2014 where a Felony Judgment and Sentence was, ultimately, filed by the 

court. RP at 1-21; CP at 27-39. Finally, Mr. Neisler submitted a Notice of 

Appeal on November 13th, 2014. 

III. DISCUSSION 

A. 	 Th~!osecu~r impli(j~yiolate(tihe terms 
of the pl~~~r~emeJ!h 

The prosecutor implicitly violated the terms of the plea 

agreement when it was agreed that the State would not opine as 

to a sentencing recommendation and the prosecutor inferred that 

no amount of time was enough and that the victims injuries 

amounted to a fate worse than death. Ultimately, the appellant 

would ask this court to reverse Mr. Neisler's conviction and 

remand this matter back to the sentencing court where Mr. 

Neisler may be given the opportunity to withdrawal his plea or 

have a new disposition hearing before a different judge. 

5 RCW 46.61.522; RCW 9.94A.535 
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"Plea agreements are contracts." State v. Sledge, 133 

Wash. 2d 828, 838, 947 P. 2d 1199, 1204 (1997)(quoting State 

v. Mollichi, 132 Wash. 2d 80, 90, 936 P. 2d 408 (1997». 

Consequently, plea agreements "concern fundamental rights of 

the accused, constitutional due process considerations come into 

play. Due process requires a prosecutor to adhere to the terms 

of the agreement." Jd. at 839. Additionally, "the State has a 

concomitant duty not to undercut the terms of the agreement 

explicitly or by conduct evidencing an intent to circumvent the 

terms of the plea agreement." Jd. at 840 (emphasis 

added)(citation omitted). 

Here, the State agreed, pursuant to plea negotiations, to 

refrain from making a "recommendation as far as a speci fic 

amount of imprisonment." RP at 2. This agreement was 

reinforced within the contents of the Notice of Settlement which 

specifically stated that the State would not make a 

recommendation as to sentencing. CP at 43. However, at the 

time of sentencing, the State made several statements that 

implicitly argued in support of an exceptional sentence which 

undercut the understood terms of the plea agreement; to wit, that 

5 




the State would not opine as to a sentencing recommendation. 

CP at 43; RP at 12-13. 

Specifically, the State conveyed to the court: 

Your Honor, so often, I think, when we deal with these 
kinds of cases in our roles as prosecutor's, defenses, and 
judges, we kind of get a little cold and callous and I can't 
even imagine what these two women have been going 
through for the past year. And I can recall one specific 
conversation that I had with Caroline Enns at one point 
over the summer. And after I asked the question, I 
realized how silly it sounded and I ask, how much time is 
enough? ... Judge, I hope during my career that I never 
have a case like this again. And this, again, and I 
apologize if it sounds callous, but in a lot of ways this is 
more severe than a vehicular homicide in that these 
women have to continue to live with this. 

[d. (Emphasis added). Consequently, the State's remarks likely 

inf1uenced the judge to impose an exceptional sentence as can 

be seen by the fact that the judge did impose a sentence of 72 

months for count 2; specifically, Vehicular Assault with 

Aggravating Circumstances. CP at 27-31. 

Now, while, the prosecutor's "[r]ecommendation need not 

be made 'enthusiastically''', there is duty on behalf of the State 

not "to undercut the terms of the agreement." See Sledge, 133 

Wash. 2d 828, 840, 947 P. 2d 1199, 1205 (1997)(citation 

omitted). 
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In Sledge, there was a plea agreement conveying that the 

State would ask for a standard range disposition of 21 to 28 

weeks on the charge of taking a motor vehicle without 

permission. Id. at 830. Ultimately, the court imposed an 

exceptional disposition of 103 weeks of confinement. Id. While 

the prosecutor overtly adhered to the terms of the plea 

agreement, at sentencing the prosecutor pursued a disposition 

hearing where the probation counselor and parole officer were 

"vigorously examined" on the aggravating factors supporting the 

exceptional sentence. Id. at 831. On appeal, where it was 

contested that the prosecutor violated the terms of the plea 

agreement by pursuing a I ine of questioning that undercut the 

plea agreement, the court reversed the exceptional sentence and 

remanded to the trial court so that Sledge would be given an 

opportunity to withdrawal the plea or undergo sentencing in 

front of a new judge. Id. at 843. Specifically, the court found: 

Finally, the State's summation of the aggravating factors 
was a transparent attempt to sustain an exceptional 
sentence. A fair reading of the State's direct examination 
of probation counselor Curtis and parole officer Garner 
and negative summation reveals the State's unmistakable 
advocacy for an exceptional sentence. Even though the 
State told the trial court it was recommending a standard 
range sentence, it violated its duty of good faith and fair 
dealing by undercutting the recommendation, and thereby 
breached the plea agreement. 

7 




[d. (Emphasis added). 

The court here is faced with a similar case. Here, the 

State agreed that it would not make a recommendation as to 

sentencing. CP at 43. Consequently, the State conveyed this to 

the court. RP at 12. However, the State proceeded to implicitly 

describe to the court that the facts of this case were so severe 

that no amount of time would be sufficient. ld. Additionally, 

the State proceeded to describe that the injuries sustained in this 

case as exceeding those of a vehicular homicide case; namely, 

death. [d. at 13. Such communication conveys to the court one 

thing; Mr. Neisler should have been sentenced to an exceptional 

sentence to which the court did. See [d. at 18. 

While the State, in this case, expressly conveyed to the 

court it would not be making a sentencing recommendation, the 

actions of the State implicitly conveyed the opposite. The 

summation provided by the State undercut the plea agreement 

when it suggested that no amount of prison time would be 

sufficient and when it analogized this case as being worse than a 

vehicular homicide. As such, we would ask this court to reverse 

Mr. Neisler's conviction and remand to the sentencing court 

where Mr. Neisler would be given the opportunity to revoke his 

8 




plea of guilty or pursue a new sentencing hearing in front of a 

different judge. 

B. 	 Ihe__~~n t en~ in lL£QU rter r ~~J~j'_cJa ss ifyiy 
Vehic_!lla r _.,As~fllllLa~JLs~r.i~lts~yio I e!lt i~lQ~ 

The court erred when it classified Vehicular Assault as a 

serious violent felony as opposed to a violent felony due to the 

fact that such a finding is in direct conflict with the language of 

RCW 9.94A.030(54 )(a)(xiii). Should the court uphold Mr. 

Neisler's plea of guilty6, this matter should be remanded back to 

the sentencing court so that the conviction for vehicular assault 

can be properly classified as a violent offense. 

RCW 9.94A.030 clearly states: 

(54) 	"Violent offense" means: 

(a) Any of the following felonies: 

(xiii) Vehicular assault, when caused by the operation or 
dri ving of a vehicle by a person under the influence of 
intoxicating liquor or any drug or by the operation or 
driving of a vehicle in a reckless manner; ... 

(Emphasis added). Additionally, "[t]he meaning of a plain and 

unamibiguous statute must be deri ved from the wording of the 

statute itself." State v. TiU, 139 Wash. 2d 107,115,985 P. 2d 

365,370 (1999) (citation omitted). 

6 See 	Supra. 
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In this case, Mr. Neisler plead guilty to one count of 

Vehicular Assault and one count of Vehicular Assault with 

Aggravating Circumstances. CP at 27-29. Consequently, the 

court found that Mr. Neisler would be subject to 2-36 months 

community custody because the court found that Vehicular 

assault was a serious violent offense. CP at 32. Such a finding 

is clearly erroneous and contrary to the unambiguous language 

ofRCW 9.94A.030(54)(a)(xiii). "Without a threshold showing 

of ambiguity, the court derives a statute's meaning from the 

wording of the statute itself ... " Tili, 139 Wash. 2d 107, 115, 

985 P. 2d 365, 370 (1999) (citation omitted). 

Ultimately, this matter should be remanded back to the 

sentencing court so that the proper finding can be made; 

specifically, that Vehicular assault is a violent offense. See 

RCW 9.94A.030(54 )(a)(xiii). 

C. 	 Tlt~!ente!lctI!gCo_urL~n·_~lll!y Jmpos~l_~ 
1!1 011 t hs~()L~omm u ni!LSJJ~ to dj'. 

The sentencing court erred by imposing 36 months 

community custody contrary to the imposition required by RCW 

9. 94A. 701 (2) and this matter should be remanded back to the 

sentencing court for a proper determination of the community 

10 




custody requirement, should the court uphold Mr. Neisler's 

guilty plea. 

Specifically, RCW 9. 94A. 701 (2) states: 

A court shall, in addition to the other terms of the 
sentence, sentence an offender to community custody for 
eighteen months when the court sentences the person to 
the custody of the department for a violent offense that is 
not considered a serious violent offense. 

(Emphasis added). 

Here, Mr. Neisler plead guilty to Vehicular Assault and 

Vehicular Assault with Aggravating Circumstances. CP at 27

39; RP at 8. At sentencing, the sentencing court acknowledged 

there was disagreement as to whether Mr. Neisler should be 

subject to 18 or 36 months community custody; however, the 

court, ultimately, imposed 36 months of community custody. 

RP at 18; CP at 32. This imposition is contrary to RCW 

9.94A. 701 (2), which unambiguously states that defendants 

convicted of a violent offense are subj ect to 18 months 

community custody. Whereas, RCW 9.94.701 (l) 7 designates 

7 RCW 9.94A.701(1) states: If an offender is sentenced to the 
custody of the department for one of the following crimes, the court 
shall, in addition to the other terms of the sentence, sentence the 
offender to community custody for three years: ... (b) A serious 
violent offense. (Emphasis added). 

11 




that individuals convicted of a serious violent offense are 

subject to three years community custody. 

The court erred by imposing the serious violent offense 

community custody requirement; namely, the court's finding is 

in direct opposition to the language in RC W 9. 94A. 70 I (2). 

Therefore, this matter should be remanded back to the 

sentencing court so that the appropriate community custody 

disposition can be determined. 

IV. Conclusion. 

In conclusion, the State implicitly undercut the terms of the plea 

agreement by making statements that supported the imposition of an 

exceptional sentence when, originally, it was understood that the State 

would not opine as to the length of imprisonment that should be imposed. 

Based on this implicit, breach of the plea agreement, this court should 

reverse Mr. Neisler's conviction and remand for another hearing where Mr. 

Neisler be given the opportunity to revoke his plea or pursue sentencing in 

front of a different judge. Additionally, the court found that a conviction for 

Vehicular Assault was a serious violent felony and, consequently, imposed 

36 months community custody. Both the finding and imposition were in 

error as Vehicular Assault, pursuant to statute, is only a violent felony 

subject to 18 months community custody. Regarding these two issues, we