I. APPELLANT'S ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. 	 THE PROSECUTOR VIOLATED THE TERMS OF THE 
PLEA AGREEMENT. 

2. 	 THE SENTENCING COURT ERRED BY 
CLASSIFYING A CONVICTION FOR VEHICULAR 
ASSAULT AS A SERIOUS VIOLENT FELONY. 

3. 	 THE SENTENCING COURT ERRED BY IMPOSING 36 
MONTHS OF COMMUNITY CUSTODY.

II. 	 ISSUES PRESENTED 

1. 	 DID THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY VIOLATE THE 
TERMS OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT WHEN THE 
PROSECUTOR AGREED NOT TO MAKE A 
SENTENCING RECOMMENDATION AND, 
ULTIMATELY, ARGUED THAT THE INJURIES 
SUSTAINED BY THE VICTIM AMOUNTED TO A 
FATE WORSE THAN DEATH? 

A. 	 IS THE PETITIONER PROHIBITED 
ASSIGNING ERROR TO THE IMPOSITION 
OF AN EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE? 

B. 	 WERE THE TERMS OF THE PLEA 
AGREEMENT VIOLATED? 

C. 	 IS THE RECORD CLEAR AS TO WHY THE 
COURT IMPOSED THE SENTENCE THAT 
IT DID? 

2. 	 DID THE SENTENCING COURT ERR BY 
CLASSIFYING VEHICULAR ASSAULT AS A 
SERIOUS VIOLENT FELONY? 

3. 	 DID THE SENTENCING COURT ERR BY IMPOSING 
36 MONTHS OF COMMUNITY CUSTODY? 
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III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


The Respondent accepts the Appellant's statement of the case. 

IV. ARGUMENT 

1. 	 THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY DID NOT VIOLATE 
THE TERMS OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT WHEN THE 
PROSECUTOR AGREED NOT TO MAKE A 
SENTENCING RECOMMENDATION AND, 
ULTIMATELY, ARGUED THAT THE INJURIES 
SUSTAINED BY THE VICTIM AMOUNTED TO A 
FATE WORSE THAN DEATH? 

A. 	 THE PETITIONER IS PROHIBITED FROM 
ASSIGNING ERROR TO THE IMPOSITION 
OF AN EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE. 

The core issue in the Petitioner's appeal is not the statements that 

the prosecution made at the time of sentencing but rather the fact that he 

was sentenced to an exceptional sentence. The Petitioner believes that he 

was sentenced to an exceptional sentence based on the statements made by 

the State. The Petitioner states, 

Consequently, the State's remarks likely influenced the 
judge to impose an exceptional sentence as can be seen by 
the fact that the judge did impose a sentence of 72 months 
for count 2; specifically, Vehicular Assault with 
Aggravating Circumstances. 

See Brief of Appellant at 6 
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He also argues that the State's, " ... communication conveys to the 

court one thing; Mr. Neisler should have been sentenced to an exceptional 

sentence which the court did." See id at 8. The Petitioner goes on to state, 

In conclusion, the State implicitly undercut the terms of the 
plea agreement by making statements that supported the 
imposition of an exceptional sentence when, originally, it 
was understood that the State would not opine as to the 
length of imprisonment that should be imposed. 

See id at 12. 

The real issue at the heart of this appeal is that the court imposed 

an exceptional sentence. However, the Petitioner is prohibited from 

arguing that an exceptional sentence was improperly imposed pursuant to 

the invited error doctrine. Under the invited error doctrine, a criminal 

defendant may not set up error at trial and then complain of it on appeal. 

In re Pers. Restraint of Thompson, 141 Wn.2d 712, 723, 10 P.3d 380 

(2000). The doctrine applies when counsel takes affirmative action that 

induces the trial court to take an action that party later challenges on 

appeaL Id. at 723-24. 

In the present case Petitioner's trial counsel urged the court to 

impose an exceptional sentence. The Petitioner cannot now assign error to 

the imposition of the exceptional sentence. The Petitioner pled guilty to 

two counts of vehicular assault. CP 19 - 17. With respect to the second 

count the Petitioner also pled guilty to an aggravator that alleged, "The 
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victim's injuries substantially exceed the level of bodily harm necessary to 

satisfy the elements of the offense." This aggravating factor is codified at 

RCW 9.94A.535(3)(y). By pleading guilty to this aggravator the court 

could sentence outside of the standard range. Essentially, by the 

defendant's plea to this aggravator he was agreeing that there were facts 

sufficient that could result in the imposition of a 120 month sentence by 

the court. This was specifically discussed by the parties, and 

acknowledged by the Petitioner, at the time of the plea and sentencing. 

See 10/21114 RP at 2,4. 

At the sentencing, Petitioner's counsel commented on the 

seriousness of the case and stated, "We would ask that the Court impose 

an exceptional sentence. We realize that 12 to 14 months isn't fitting in 

this case. We would ask the Court to go higher than that, to go 16 months 

or 18 months." Id. at 15. 

H would appear the Petitioner is dissatisfied with the length of the 

exceptional sentence which was imposed. However, the Petitioner cannot 

now claim that an error occurred with the imposition of an exceptional 

sentence and attribute this error to a comment made by the State when he 

himself advocated for the imposition of such a sentence. 
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B. THE TERMS OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT 

WERE NOT VIOLATED. 

The State did not violate the terms of the plea agreement in the 

present case when it addressed the court. There was no recommendation 

contained in the plea agreement that could have been undercut. The 

question as to whether the State has breached a plea agreement may be 

raised for the first time on appeal because the question has constitutional 

magnitude. State v. Sledge, 133 Wash.2d 828, 839, 947 P.2d 1199 (1997). 

A plea agreement is a contract between the State and the defendant. ld. at 

838-39, 947 P.2d 1199. Basic contract principles of good faith and fair 

dealing impose upon the State an implied promise to act in good faith in 

plea agreements. Id. at 838-39, 947 P.2d 1199. Due process concerns 

reinforce the State's duty to comply with plea agreements. Id. 839-40, 

947 P.2d 1199. 

Accordingly, a plea agreement obligates the State to recommend to 

the court the sentence contained in the agreement. State v. Talley, 134 

Wash.2d 176, 183,949 P.2d 358 (1998); Sledge, 133 Wash.2d at 840, 947 

P.2d 1199. This obligation does not, however, require the State to make 

the sentencing recommendation enthusiastically. Talley, 134 Wash.2d at 

183,949 P.2d 358; Sledge, 133 Wash.2d at 840, 947 P.2d 1199. But, at 

the same time, the State must not undercut the terms of the agreement. 
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Talley, 134 Wash.2d at 183,949 P.2d 358; Sledge, 133 Wash.2d at 840, 

947 P.2d 1199; State v. Jerde, 93 Wash.App. 774, 780, 970 P.2d 781 

(1999). The State can undercut a plea agreement either explicitly or 

implicitly through conduct indicating an intent to circumvent the 

agreement. Sledge, 133 Wash.2d at 840, 947 P.2d 1199; Jerde, 93 

Wash.App. at 780, 970 P.2d 781; In re Palodichuk, 22 Wash.App. 107, 

110, 589 P.2d 269 (1978). 

An objective standard is applied in determining whether the State 

breached a plea agreement '''irrespective of prosecutorial motivations or 

justifications for the failure in performance. '" Jerde, 93 Wash.App. at 780, 

970 P.2d 781 (quoting Palodichuk, 22 Wash.App. at 110,589 P.2d 269); 

see also Sledge, 133 Wash.2d at 843 n. 7, 947 P.2d 1199 ("The focus of 

this decision is on the effect of the State's actions, not the intent behind 

them."). "The test is whether the prosecutor contradicts, by word or 

conduct, the State's recommendation for a standard range sentence." 

Jerde, 93 Wash.App. at 780, 970 P.2d 781 (citing Talley, 134 Wash.2d at 

187, 949 P.2d 358). In making this determination, the entire sentencing 

record is reviewed. Jerde, 93 Wash.App. at 782, 970 P.2d 781. 

The Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty in this case set forth 

the State's recommendation. It provided, in relevant part, "State will defer 

to the Court with respect to sentencing ... " No specific recommendation 
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regarding the length of incarceration was made in the plea agreement or 

orally by the State. This plea agreement did not prohibit the State from 

commenting on the case or what had happened to the two victims. At the 

beginning of the hearing the State informed the court, 

Given the history of the case, the nature of the injuries, 
judge, we have agreed not to make a recommendation as 
far as a specific amount of imprisonment and I'll get to 
some of the reasons for that later. But ultimately we are 
asking the Court to hear from the victims in the case. I'll 
supplement a little bit about the history of the case, how we 
got here today and ultimately we're deferring to Your 
Honor on what should be the appropriate sentence. 

See 10/21114 RP at 2 

The Petitioner agreed that this was the resolution that had been 

reached. See id at 3. The parties engaged in a discussion at the time of 

sentencing about the range of confinement the court could impose. See id 

at 2, 4. The Petitioner pled guilty as charged to an aggravator and thereby 

stipulated to the possibility that the court could impose up to 120 months 

of incarceration if the court saw fit. 

The Petitioner cites to State v. Sledge to support his argument. The 

facts in Sledge are distinguishable from those in this case. In Sledge the 

State had agreed to make a standard range disposition recommendation to 

the court. Sledge 133 Wash. P.2d at 830, 647 P.2d 1199. In Sledge the 

State made the agreed upon recommendation but then insisted on a 
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disposition hearing to present evidence. Id. At the disposition hearing the 

State presented evidence regarding aggravating factors that would support 

an exceptional sentence. Id. The court ultimately imposed an exceptional 

disposition in Sledge. Id. 

In Sledge the State conducted an evidentiary hearing which was 

not necessary to impose a standard range disposition. In addition to 

demanding an unnecessary evidentiary hearing the State engaged m 

extensive affirmative conduct that was not required to support the 

imposition of the bargained for disposition. The Petitioner, in this case, 

equates a comment made by the State about the evidence to what 

transpired in Sledge. Commenting on the impact the Petitioner's actions 

had on the victims' lives in this case is not the same as demanding a 

superfluous evidentiary hearing and presenting extensive testimony when 

it was not necessary. 

The Petitioner's brief also seems to suggest that it was the State's 

comment which led to the imposition of the exceptional sentence. The 

record reflects that Petitioner not only agreed that there were sufficient 

facts to support the imposition of an exceptional sentence but himself 

requested that the court impose an exceptional sentence. This fact makes 

this case distinguishable from Sledge. 
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The case law which is referenced above, and is cited by the 

Petitioner, involves cases in which the State had agreed to make a specific 

sentencing recommendation with respect to the length of incarceration. In 

the present case no such recommendation was made to the court. Rather, 

the parties negotiated a resolution in which the State agreed to defer to the 

court with respect to the length of sentence that should be imposed. The 

court was given carte blanche to fashion any sentence it saw fit This fact 

was made abundantly clear at the time of sentencing. 

It would appear that the Petitioner is now displeased with the 

length of the sentence the court imposed. However, the record is clear that 

he was made aware of what could happen at the sentencing and chose to 

proceed; knowing that the imposition of the sentence he received was 

within the realm of possibility. 

C. 	 THE RECORD IS CLEAR AS TO WHY THE 
COURT IMPOSED THE SENTENCE THAT 
IT DID. 

Since the Petitioner is barred from assigning error to the imposition 

of an exceptional sentence and since the plea agreement was not breached 

by the state the only issue remaining is whether the court imposed a lawful 

sentence. The Petitioner attributes the sentence which was imposed by the 

court to the comments the State made at sentencing. See Brief of 
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Appellant at 6. No authority or support for this claim is provided. This 

court need not speculate as to the reasons the trial court had for imposing 

the sentence it did. The record is clear as to reasons the trial judge had for 

imposing the sentence. See CP 44 - 48. 

RCW 9.94A.535 provides, "Whenever a sentence outside the 

standard sentence range is imposed, the court shall set forth the reasons for 

its decision in written findings of fact and conclusions of law." RCW 

9.94A.585(4) provides, "To reverse a sentence which is outside the 

standard sentence range, the reviewing court must find: (a) Either that the 

reasons supplied by the sentencing court are not supported by the record 

which was before the judge or that those reasons do not justify a sentence 

outside the standard sentence range for that offense; or (b) that the 

sentence imposed was clearly excessive or clearly too lenient." 

In the instant case the court heard from both victims regarding the 

impact the Petitioner's actions had on their lives. The court also heard 

from the State. The Petitioner's counsel addressed the court and provided 

letters in support of the Petitioner to assist the court in deciding what an 

appropriate sentence should be. The court was provided with an 

abundance of information regarding this incident and the impact it has had 

on the lives of those involved in this case. The trial court made a finding 

of fact that, "The prosecuting attorney made no recommendation and the 
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defense counsel recommended 16 to 18 months. The victims 

recommended 120 months." See CP at 45. 

The sentence which was imposed by the court was supported by 

the evidence. The court went into detail with respect to the reasons behind 

imposing a 72 month sentence. See generally CP 44 - 48. The court 

reflected on past cases that had been prosecuted in Stevens County and 

conducted legal research into other cases from across the state in which 

exceptional sentences were imposed. After taking into account everything 

the court had heard as well as the legal research it conducted a proper and 

lawful sentence was imposed. 

The trial court stated what facts it was relying on when it decided 

to impose a 72 month sentence. The court found. 

B. The harm suffered by Caroline H. Enns on June 19, 
2013, as she described at the hearing was immediate and 
permanent loss of vision in both eyes; sheared off right 
elbow; broken left ankle; both shoulders crushed, the bones 
shattered; both arms with mUltiple breaks, and legs broken. 
This harm substantially exceeds the level of bodily harm 
necessary to comprise substantial bodily harm. 

C. In the aftermath she uses a walker, out of fear she might 
fall; she has had eight surgeries, taking five to eight hours 
each; she has incurred $650,000 in medical bills; she is 
unable to pursue her career as an artist; and she is totally 
dependent on the care of her daughter. She has suffered 
unremitting pain since June 29, 2013. 

Id at 45. 
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The trial court's decision is made clear in its written findings, and 

from that writing it is apparent that the State's comments at sentencing did 

not influence the court in reaching its decision. Rather the court focused 

on the injuries of the victims and weighed this case against others it had 

heard when it decided to sentence the Petitioner to 72 months. 

2. 	 THE SENTENCING COURT DID ERR BY 

CLASSIFYING VEHICULAR ASSAULT AS A 

SERIOUS VIOLENT FELONY. 


The State concedes that the trial court improperly classified the 

offense of vehicular assault as a serious violent offense. RCW 

9.94A.030(S4)(xiii) states that vehicular assault is a "violent offense" 

when, " ... caused by the operation or driving of a vehicle by a person 

while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or any drug or by the 

operation or driving of a vehicle in a reckless manner." 

In the present case the Petitioner pled guilty to two counts of 

vehicular assault committed while under the influence. The State does not 

object to amending the Petitioner's judgment and sentence to correct this 

error. 
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3. 	 THE SENTENCING COURT DID ERR BY IMPOSING 
36 MONTHS OF COMMUNITY CUSTODY. 

The State concedes that the trial court improperly imposed 36 

months of community custody. RCW 9.94A.701(2) provides, "A court 

shall ... sentence an offender to community custody for eighteen months 

when the court sentences the person to the custody of the department for a 

violent offense that is not considered a serious violent offense." 

The State does not object to amending the Petitioner's judgment 

and sentence to reflect a term of community custody of eighteen months. 

V. CONCLUSION 

The Petitioner reached an agreement with the state that resolved 

his case. This resolution involved the possibility that he could be 

sentenced to an exceptional sentence up to 120 months. He is now 

dissatisfied with the sentence that was imposed and points to one comment 

made during the sentencing hearing made by the State to support a claim 

that the plea agreement had been breached. However, when the record is 

reviewed in its entirety it becomes clear as to what transpired at 

sentencing. The Petitioner was made aware of the possibility he could be 

sentenced to an exceptional sentence. The Petitioner himself asked for an 

exceptional sentence. The trial court listened to everyone, conducted 
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research, and imposed a sentence which is supported by the facts and the 

law. 

The State respectfully requests that this court deny the relief the 

Petitioner seeks with respect to this first issue. The State further